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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the City Council
City of Sinton, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the blended component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Sinton, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which coliectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management's Responsihility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant o the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit io obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred fo above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-lype activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sinton, Texas, as of September 30, 2015,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note H to the financial statements, in 2015 the City adapted new accounting guldance,
GASB Statement No. 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. Qur opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and the Employees Retirement System Information on pages 3-13 and 54-56 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statemenis that collectively
comprise the City of Sinton, Texas’ basic financial statements. The combining and individuat non major
fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual non major fund financial statements are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the audifing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information direcily to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the combining and individual non major fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation fo the basic financial statements as a whole.

W%/é. 5?;»

Certified Public Accountants
June 21, 2016



Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Sinton, Texas, we offer readers of the City of Sinton, Texas' financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activilies of the City of Sinton, Texas for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City of Sinfon, Texas exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $14,130,672 (net assets). Of this amount, $1,192,645 (unrestricted net assets) may
be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The government's total net assets decreased by $121,563. The primary reason for the decrease
was a decrease in EMS revenues of '$109,059.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Sinton, Texas' governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $4,272,986, a decrease of $1,518,934 in comparison with the
prior year. Approximately 13% of this total amount, $539,839, is availabie for spending at the
government's discretion (unassigned fund balance).

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $539,839,
or 14 percent of total general fund expenditures,

The City of Sinton, Texas' total debt decreased by $935,179 (14 percent) during the current fiscal
year. The key factor in this decrease was the bond payments of $760,002.



Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Sinton, Texas' basic
financial statements. The City of Sinton, Texas’ basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statemenis, and 3} notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Sinton, Texas’ finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Sinton, Texas' assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Sinton, Texas is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise fo the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods {e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Sinton, Texas that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Sinton, Texas include
general administration, public safety, public transportation, capital projects, and culture and recreation.
The business-type activities of the City of Sinton, Texas include a Water and Sewer fund.

The government-wide financial statements include only the City of Sinton, Texas itself (known as the
primary government}.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14-15 of this report.



Fund financial statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Sinton, Texas, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Sinton, Texas can be divided into two
categories. governmental funds and proprietary funds. '

Governmental funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of
the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing
requirements. '

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
s0, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decistons. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Sinton, Texas maintains eleven individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the interest and sinking fund, the 2014
tax note street improvement fund, and the economic development fund all of which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other seven governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form
of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Sinton, Texas adopts an annual appropriated budgst for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this
budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 16-20 of this report.



Proprietary funds: The City of Sinton, Texas maintains two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City of Sinton, Texas uses enterprise funds to account for its Water and Sewer
activities. The Internal Service Funds for the City of Sinton, Texas, consist solely of the Self-insurance
Fund. This fund was created to provide physical damage coverage for accidental damages incurred by
City vehicles. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Utility fund
which is considered to be a major fund of the City of Sinton, Texas. Conversely, the internal service fund
is combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statement.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pagés 21-25 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide addiﬁonal information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 26-53 of this report.

Other information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Sinton, Texas’ progress in
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information
can be found on pages 54-56 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining and
individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 57-58 of this report.



Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of 2 govemment's financial position,
In the case of the City of Sinton, Texas, assets exceeded liabilities by $14,130,672 at the close of the
most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the City of Sinton, Texas' net assets (70 percent) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City of Sinfon, Texas uses these capital assets to provide services fo
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Sinton,
Texas' investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed fo repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabifities.

CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS

NET ASSETS
Governmental Business-Type Taotal
Activities Activifies
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Current and Other Assets $2,050,544 $2423726 $2,346,687 52232319  $4.397.231  $4,656,045
Restricted Assets: 3674775 4,752,874 1244936 1744020 4,919,711 6,496,894
Capitat Assets: 7,240,287 6,641,186 4977793 4599815 12.218,080 11,340,971
Total Assets , 12,965,606 13,817,756 8569416 BA76154 21535022 22493910

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 290,972 230,015 17,827 61,365 368,599 201,380

Long-Term Liabilities 3812810 3,381,045 1,998,351 2,201,026 5,811,161 5,582,071
Other Liabilities 1,042,662 2,157,510 919,126 793,474 1,061,788 2,950,984
Total Liabilities : 4855472 5538555 2917477 2,994,500 7,772,949 8,533,055
Invested in Capital Assels,

Net of Refated Dabt 5,510,323 4,567,153 4411908 4455779 9,922,231 8,022,932
Restricted 2,850,452 3,531,289 165,344 137,880 3,015,796 3,668,969
Unrestricted 40,331 410,774 1,152,314 1,149,560 1,192,645 1,960,334
Total Net Position $8,401,106 $8,509,216 $5729,566 §5,743,019 $14,130,672 $14,252,235

An additional pertion of the City of Sinton, Texas' net assets (21 percent) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net
assets ($1,192,645) may be used to meet the governments on going obligations to citizens and creditors.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Sinton, Texas reported a positive balance in the
governmental activities and a positive balance in the business-type activities. For the prior fiscal year, the
City of Sinton, Texas reported positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the
government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

There was a decrease of $653,173 in restricted net assets reported in connection with the City of Sinton,
Texas' governmeni-type and business-type activities. This decrease resuited mainly from capital
expendifures.

The government’s total net assets decreased by $121,563. The primary reason for the decrease was a
decrease in EMS revenues of $109,059.



Governmental activities:

Governmental activities decreased the City of Sinton, Texas' net assets by $108,110, thereby accounting
for 89 percent of the total decline in the net assets of the City of Sinton, Texas. This decrease is
attributable to a decrease in EMS revenues of $109,059.

CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Governmental Business-Type Total
Acfivities Activities
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $1,024971 $1,125102 $1,854,083 91,800,284  $2,879,054  $2,925,386
Capital Grants and Contributions 0 £58,334 0 0 0 858,334
General Revenues:
Maintenance and Operations Taxes 1,081,543 1,041,453 1,001,543 1,041,453
Sales Taxes 1,035,404 1,057,860 1,035,404 1,067,860
Franchise Taxes 240,845 237,537 240,845 237,537
Other Taxes 38,604 41,375 38,604 41,375
Unrestricted investment Earnings 5435 20,690 980 15,806 6,425 36,496
Miscellaneous 553,346 434,680 553,346 434,680
Total Revenue 3990148 4817031  1,885073 1,816,090 5845221 6,633,121
Expenses:
General Administration 738,138 1,425,576 738,138 1,425,576
Public Safety 2434436 2,159,109 2434436 2,159,109
Public Transportation 447,677 465,385 447 677 485,385
Culture and Recreation 601,662 573,017 : 601,662 573.017
Interest and Fiscal Charges 134,062 94,202 134,062 94,202
Water and Sewer 1,610,809 1,413,726 1,610,809 1413,726
Total Expenses 4355075 4717289 1610809 1413726 5966784 613,015
increase in Net Position Before {365,827 99,742 244,264 402,364 {121,563) 502,106
Transfers and Special ltems
Transfers 257,717 557,400  (257,717)  (557,409) 0 1]
Increase in Net Position (108,110} 657,151 (13,453)  (155,045) {121,563) 502,108
Net Pasition at 09/30/2014 - Restated 8,500,216 7,852,065 5743019 5898,064 142522358 13,750,129
Net Position at 09/30/2015 $8401,106 $8,509,216 §5,729,566 $5,743,019 §$14,130,672 $14,252,235

Total revenues decreased by $826,883 (17 percent) during the year. Total expenses decreased by
$361,314 or 8%. The largest expense decrease was in general administration which decreased by
$687,438 which was mainly the result of an decrease in grant expenses. The largest decrease in
revenues was in capital grants which decreased by $858,334. The largest increase in expenses was in
public safety which increased by $275,327.



Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

Program Revenues

Capital
Charges for  Granfs and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services  Coniributions
Primary Government
Government Activities:

General Administration $738,138 $40.773 $0

Public Safety 2,434,436 915,910

Public Transportation 447 877 43,109

Culture and Recreation 601,662 10,179

Interest and Fiscal Charges 134,062

Total Government Activities: $4,355,975  $1,024,971 $0

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
REVENUES %

Charges for Services $1,024,971 26%
Capital Grants and Contributicns 0 0%
Maintenance and Operations Taxes 1,091,543 7%
Sales Taxes 1,035,404 26%
Franchise Taxes 240,845 6%
Other Taxes 38,604 1%
Unresfricted investment Eamings 5435 0%
Miscelianeous 553,346 14%

$3,990,148 100%

For the most part, increases and decreases in expenses closely paralleled inflation and growth in the
demand for services.

Business-type activities:

Business-type activities decreased the City of Sinton, Texas' net assets by $13,453, thereby accounting
for 11 percent of the total decline in the net assets of the City of Sinton, Texas.

Demand for services for business-type activities increased by 4 percent or $53,799,
The amount of fransfer to the general fund decreased by $299,692 or 54%.

Total expenses increased by $197,083 or 14%. The increase in expenses closely paralleled
inflation and an increase in the demand for services.



Expenses and Program Revenues - Business Activities

Program Revenues

Capital
Charges for ~ Grantsand
Functions/Programs Expenses  Services  Contribufions
Primary Government
Business-Type Activities:
Water and Sewer $1,610,809  $1,854,083 0
Total Business-Type Activities $1,610,809  $1,854,083 $0

Revenues by Source - Business-Type Aclivities
REVENUES %

Charges for Services §1,854,083 100%
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 990 0%
$1,855,073 100%

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Sinton, Texas uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstraie compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds:

The focus of the City of Sinton, Texas' governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of
Sinton, Texas' financing requirements. In particutar, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Sinton, Texas' governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $4,272,986, a decrease of 51,518,934 in comparison with the prior year. Key
factors in this decrease are as follows:

A decrease in capital expenditures of $858,426, a decrease in debt service of $372,223, and
$299,892,

Approximately 13 percent of this total amount ($3539,839) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is
available for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is restricted,
committed, or non-spendable,

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Sinton, Texas. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $539,839, while total fund balance reached
$549,695. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare hoth unassigned fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 14
percent of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 14 percent of that same
amount.
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The fund balances of the City of Sinton, Texas' general fund decreased by $401,828, during the current
fiscal year. Key factors in this decrease are as follows:

The revenues decreased by $784,785.
The expenditures decreased by $434,168.
The net transfers in decreased by $134,005.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the interest and sinking fund was $-0-,
while total fund balance was $707,719. As a measure of the interest and sinking fund's liguidity, it may be
useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unassigned fund balance represents 00 percent of total interest and sinking fund expenditures, while total
fund balance represents 125 percent of that same amount.

The fund balances of the City of Sinton, Texas’ interest and sinking fund decreased by $473,560, during
the current fiscal year. Key factors in this decrease are as foliows: Continued transfers from the utifity fund
declined.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the economic development fund was $-
0-, while total fund balance was $1,989,474. As a measure of the economic development fund's liquidity,
it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 00 percent of total economic development fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 683 percent of that same amount.

The fund balances of the City of Sinton, Texas' economic development fund increased by $292,385,
during the current fiscal year. Key factors in this increase are as follows: This increase resulfed mainly
from a decrease in building activity and an increase in sales tax income.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the 2014 Tax Note Street improvement
fund was $-0-, while total fund balance was $307,533. There is no analysis of the 2014 Tax Note Street
Improvement fund because it is a construction fund and any analysis would be meaningless.

Proprietary funds:

The City of Sinton, Texas' proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Utility fund at the end of the year amounted to $1,152,314. The decrease in
net assets was $13,453. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been
addressed in the discussion of the City of Sinton, Texas' business-type activities.

General Fund Budgstary Highlights

There was no change between the original budget and the final amended budget in the general fund.

Overall, actua! expenditures in the general fund of $3,755,232 were more than the budgeted expenditures
of $3,567,634 by $187,598.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital assets:

The City of Sinton, Texas' investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
as of September 30, 2015, amounts to $12,218,080 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings and system, improvements, machinery and equipment, park
facilities, roads, highways, and bridges. The total increase in the City of Sinton, Texas’ investment in
capital assets for the current fiscal year was a 9 percent increase (a 10 percent increase for governmental
activities and a 6 percent increase for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

The City had street improvements and sewer facility improvements during the year which were
financed by a 2014 bond.

CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSETS (Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type Total
Acfivities Acfivities
2015 2014 2015 2014 2018 2014
Land $62,250 $62,250 $4,000 $4,000 $66,250 $66,250
Construction in Progress 1,022,573 90,438 565,886 72,354 1,588,459 162,792
Building and Improvements 3,903,114 4,013,862 0 0 3903114 4,013,862
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles 218,854 308,868 84,821 134,431 303,675 443,299
intangible Assets 2,033,496 2,081,527 0 1,238 2,033,496 2,082,785
Infrastructure 0 3775 4323086 4,467,792 4323088 4,491,567
Total $7,240,287 96,560,720 $4,977,793 $4,699,815 $12,218,080 $11,260,535

Additional information on the City of Sinton, Texas' capital assets can be found in note IV C on page 38-
39 of this report. :
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Long-term debt:

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Sinton, Texas had total bonded debt outstanding of
$4,130,000. Of this amount, $4,130,000 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City of
Sinton, Texas. The remainder of the City of Sinfon, Texas' debt represents bonds secured solsly by
specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds).

CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS
Qutstanding Deht
Certificates of Obligation, Tax Notes, and Revenue Bonds

Govemmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Certificates of Obligation $2,520,000 $3,076,570 $2,520,000 $3,076,970
Revenue Bonds 1,610,000 1,813,032 18610000 1,813,032
Total $2,520,000 $3,076,970 $1,610,000 §$1,813,032 $4,130,000 $4,890,002

The City of Sinton, Texas' total debt decreased by $935,179 (14 percent) during the current fiscal year.
The key factor in this decrease was the bond payments of $975,002.

The City of Sinton, Texas and its Utility fund both maintain a "AA" rating from Standard & Poor's and Fitch
and a "AA2" rating from Moody's for general obligation debt. State statutes limit the amount of general
obligation debt a governmentai entity may issue fo 25 percent of its total assessed valuation. The current
debt limitation for the City of Sinton, Texas is $40,438,574, which is significantly in excess of the City of
Sinton, Texas’ outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on the City of Sinton, Texas' long-term debt can be found in note IV F on pages 41-
42 of this report.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed fo provide a general overview of the City of Sinlon, Texas' finances for all
those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided

in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the
Finance Department, P.0. Box 1395, Sinton, Texas, 78387,
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CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Inventories
Restricted Assels:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Recelvables {net of alfowance for uncollectibles)
Capital Assets Not Being Depraciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net
Building and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Intangible Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred Outflow of Resaurces-Contributions (after 12/31/14)
Deferred Outflow-Investment Experience
Deferred Qutflow-Actual Experience vs. Assumption
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages
Accrued Interest Payable
Consumer Meter Deposit
Unearmed Revenue
Noncurrent Ligbilities

Duse Within One Year

Due In Mare Than One Year

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Invesied in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Construction
Economic Development
Public Safety
Unrestricted
- Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Primary Govemment
Govemmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$1.276432 32,046,177 §3,322609
764,256 265,651 1,028,807
9,856 34,850 44.715
3674775 1244938 4918711
0 0
62,250 4,000 68,250
1,022,573 565,886 1,588,489
3903114 4323086 8,226,200
218,854 84,821 303,675
2,033,496 2,033,438
0 ] 0
§12965606  $8568.416  §21535,022
268,850 71,725 340,575
14,131 3,710 17,901
7,991 2132 10,123
290,972 77,677 368,589
§175,432 $85,608 $261,041
89,030 14,080 103,119
12,621 9,169 21,780
249,644 249644
765,570 560,624 1,326,194
245,501 77,568 323,089
3,567,309 1,920,763 5488072
4855472 2917417 7772948
5510323 4411808 9,922,231
707,719 707,719
0 165,344 165,344
1,089,474 1989474
183,259 163,259
40,331 1152314 1192645
$8401,106  §5,729.5668 §14,130672
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CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Net (Expense) Net {Expense)
Revenue and Revenue and
Program Revernues Changes in Changes in
Capital '
Chargesfor ~ Grantsand Govemmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services  Contributions  Activities Activities Total
Primary government
Govemment Activities:
General Administration $738,138 $49,773 0 {688,365) {$688,365)
Public Safety 2,434 436 915910 (1,518,5286) (1,518,526)
Pubiic Transportation 447 677 48,109 (398,568) {398,568)
Cuiture and Recreation 601,662 10,179 (591,483) (591,483
Interest and Fiscal Charges 134,062 (134,062 {134,062)
Total Government Activities 4,355,975 1,024,971 0 (3,331,004) 1 {3,331,004)
Business-Type Activities:
Water and Sewer 1,610,809 1,864,083 243,274 243,274
Total Business-Type Activities 1,610,809 1,854,083 0 0 243 274 243 274
Total Primary Government $5,966,784  $2,879,004 $0  (3,331,004) 243,274 (3,087,730
General Revenues
Property Taxes, Levies for General Purposes 1,091,543 1,081,543
Sales Taxes 1,035,404 1,035,404
Franchise Taxes 240,845 240,845
Other Taxes 38,604 . 38,604
Unrestricted Investment Eamnings 5435 990 6,425
Miscellaneous 553,346 553,346
Transfars 257,717 (257,717) Q
Total General Revenuss and Transfers 3,222,894 (256,727) 2,966,167
Ghange in Net Position {108,110} {13,453) (121,563)
Net Position - Beginning - Restated 8,509,216 5,743,019  14,252235
Net Position - Ending $8401,106  §5729566  $14,130,672

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Interest 2014 Tax
and Economic  Nofe Street Cther Total
General Sinking  Development Improvement Govemmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS :
Cash and Cash Equivalents $936,058 50 30 80 $197,137  $1,134,005
Receivables {net of allowance
for uncollectibles) 699,269 699,269
Inventories 9,856 £,856
Restricted Assats
Cash and Cash Equivalents 707,719 1,989,474 424,768 552,814 3,674,775
Receivables {net of aliowance
for uncollectibles) 0
Total Assels $1,646,083 $707,719  $1,980474 $424,768 $749851  $5517,095
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Lighilities
Accounts Payable $26,811 $117,235 $31,386 $175.432
Accrued Wages 89,039 89,039
DCeferred Revenue 765,570 765,570
Total Liabilities 881,420 0 0 117,235 31,386 1,030,041
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Taxes 214,958 214,968
Fund Bealances:
Nan-Spendable
Inventories 0,856 9,856
Restricied
Dbt Service 707,719 707,719
Construction 307,533 524,490 832,023
Economic Development 1,989,474 1,989,474
Public Safety 153,259 153,258
Committed
Construction 40,816 40,816
Unassigned 539,839 539,838
Total Fund Balance 549,685 707,719 1,989,474 307,533 718,565 4,272,986
Total Lisbilities and Fund Balances $1,646,083 $707,719  §1,983.474 $424,768 $749.951  §5,517.995

The accompanying notes are an integral pert of this statement.
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CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET PQSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Total Fund Balances - governmental funds balance shest

Amounts reported for governmenta! activiies in the statement of Net Positicn
("SNA"} are different because:

Capital assels used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds.
Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for current petiod
expenditures are deferred in the funds (net of allowance for uncollectibles).
Other long-tarm assets are not avallable o pay for current period
expenditures and, therefors, are deferred in the funds.
Long-term liabilities, inciuding bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
cusrent period and therefare are not reported in the funds.
Payables for bond interest are not reported in the funds.
Deferred Outflow of Resources-Contribution.
Deferred Qutflow-Investment Experience.
Deferred Outflow-Actual Experience vs. Assumption.
Internal Service funds are used by management to account for funds for Self-
Insurance. The assets and liahilities of internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position.

Net Pasifion of governmental activities - statement of Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes

Property

Sdles

Franchise

Other
Licenses and Permits
Charges for Sarvices
Fines and Forfeitures
Inferest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
(General Administration
Public Safety
Public Transportation
Culture and Recreation
Capital Projects -
Capital Outlay and Other
Debt Service
Principal Refirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficlency) of Ravenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Other Financing Sources - Bond Proceeds
Other Financing Sources - Bond Premium
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Usas)

Net Changes in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning - Restated
Fund Balances - Ending

Interest 2014 Tax

and Economic  Note Street Other Total
General Sinking  Pevelopment Improvement Govemmental Govemmental

Fund Fund ~_Fund Fund Funds Funds
$1,063,471 §0 0 §0 $0 $1,083471
517,702 517,702 1,035,404
240,845 240,845
38,604 38,604
5,185 5,185
946417 44,350 990,776
45,633 45,633
602 1,031 892 2,430 349 5,364
470,827 65,254 17,265 553,346
3,329,286 1,031 583,848 2,490 61,973 3,978,628
582,529 0 582,529
2,254,263 0 2,254,263
408,753 406,753
511,687 511,687
85463 1,000,204 1,088,757
63,650 558,321 150,000 77,971
79,445 6,874 56,000 142,319
3,808,327 565,195 201,463 1,000,294 0 5,755,279
(569,041) (664,164) 262,385 (097,804) 81,973 (1.776,651)
0
0
431,000 90,604 0 521,604
(263,887) {263,887)
167,113 90,604 0 0 0 257,747
{401,928) {473,560) 292,385 (997,804) 61973 {1,518934)
951623 1,181,279  1.697,089 1305337 656,592 5,791,920
$549,695 §707,718  $1,989474 $307,633 $718,565  $4,272,988

The accompanying notas are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Net Changes in Fund Balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reporied for governmental acivities in the statement of Net Posifion
{"SNA") are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those asseis is allocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period.
Deferrad Qutflow of Resources-Contributicn. This is the change in these amounts this year.
Deferred Quiflow-Investment Experience. This is the change in these amounts this year,
Deferred Outflow-Actual Experience vs. Assumption. This is the change in these amounts this year.
Increase in [oan principal are receipts in the funds but not revenue in the SOA.
{Increase) decrease in bond premiurt frem beginning of period 1o end of period.
{Increase) decrease in accrued interest from beginning of pericd fo end of period.
(Increase) decrease in compensated absences from beginning of period to end of period.
Other long-term assets are not avalable to pay for current period

expendituras and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year.

Infernal Service funds are used by management fa account for funds for Self-Insurance.
The net revenus of certain acivities of Internal service funds is reported with
govarnmental activities.
Certain property tax revenues ars deferred in the funds. This is tha change in these amounts this year.
{Increase) decrease in Net Pension Liability from beginning of period to end of period,
Repayment of loan principal Is an expenditure in the funds hut not an expense in the SOA.

Change in Net Position of governmental activities - stalement of acivities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Verance with
‘ Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Positive
" Original Final Basis (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes
Property ‘ $1,098,700  $1,006,700  $1,063,471 ($33,229)
Sales 470,000 470,000 517,702 47,702
Franchise 267,000 267,000 240,845 (26,155)
Other 35,000 35,000 38,604 3,604
Licenses and Permits 9,100 9,100 5,185 (3.915)
Charges for Services 964,700 964,700 946,417 (18,283}
Fines and Forfeifures £0,000 90,000 45,633 (44,367}
Interest 30,000 30,000 602 {29,398}
Miscellaneous 397,800 397,900 470,821 72927
Total Revenues 3,360,400 3,360,400 3,329,286 {31,114}
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Administration
General administration 567,806 567,806 582,528 (14,723)
Public Safety
Animal Control 69,114 69,114 74,283 {5,169)
EMS 891,701 891,701 1,028,998 (137,297
Fire Department 77,360 77,360 89,829 (12,469)
Inspection 8,220 8,220 4,496 374
Municipal Court . 67,879 67,572 78474 (10,595)
Police Department 901,829 901,829 978,183 {76,354}
Public Transportation
Streets 418,105 418,105 406,753 11,362
Culture and Recraation
Parks 344,800 344,800 308,925 37875
Library 220,820 220,820 204,762 16,058
Total Expenditures 3,567,634 3,567,634 3,785,232 {187 598)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (207,234} {207,234) {425,946) 218,712)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 431,000 431,000 431,000 0
Transfers Out (213,575} (213,575) (263,887) {50,312
Total Other Financing Scurces (Uses) 217,425 217,425 167,113 {50,312)
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Budgetary Basis $10,191 $10,191 (258,833) _ ($269,024)
Recenciliation from cash basis fo modified accruat:
Debt Service
Principal Refirement {63,650)
interest Retirement {79,445)
Net Changes in Fund Balances-Modified Accrual Besis (401,828)
Fund Balances - Beginning 851,823
Fund Balances - Ending $549,695

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

ASSETS
Currant Assets
Gash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibles)
Inventaries
Cash and Cash Equivalents for Restricted Current Lisbilities
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets
Land
Construction in Progress
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Total Capital Assets
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets (net of
accumulated depreciation)

Total Noncurrent Asseis

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflow of Resources-Contributions (after 12/31/13)
Deferred Quiflow of Resources-Contributions (after 12/31/14)
Daferred Outflow-Investment Experience
Deferred Outflow-Actual Experience vs. Assumption
Total Deferred Outflow of Resources

TOTAL ASSETS
(continued)
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GOVERN-
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIMITIES MENTAL
- ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES-

UTILITY uTILITY TOTALS INTERNAL
CURRENT PRICR CURRENT  SERVICE
YEAR YEAR YEAR FUND

$2.046,177  $1937,161  §2,046177 §142,337

265,651 260,209 265,651
34,859 34,859 34,859
1244935  1,744020  1,244.936

3591623 3076330 3,501,623 142,337

4,000 4,000 4,000
565,885 72,354 565,886
05483686 9548368 9,548,368
1,084,415 1084415  1,084415

6,190 6,190 6,190
TI206850 10,715,327 11,206,859 i)

(6.231.068) (6015512)  (6,231,066)
2077793 4690015 4077793 0
197779 46904815 4977793 3

61,365 0

717% 71,725

3,770 3,770

212 9132

77,627 61,365 77,627

$8.560,416 38,676,154  §8,569,416 $142.3%7




(continued)

GOVERN-
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES MENTAL
- ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTMVITIES-
UTILITY UTILITY TOTALS INTERNAL
CURRENT PRIOR CURRENT  SERVICE
LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY YEAR YEAR YEAR FUND
AND OTHER CREDITS
Liahilities
Current Liabifities (Payable from Current Assets)
Accounts Payable $85,609 $85,155 $85,609
Accrued Wages 14,080 10,590 14,080
Accrued Interest Payable 9,169 13,524 9,169
Compensated Absences 4,434 4,650 4434
Deferred Revenue 560,624 432,087 560,624
Notes Payable - Current 10,238 10,236 10,236
Revenue Bonds - Current 62,918 91976 62,918
Total Gurrent Liabilities 747,070 648,218 747,070 0
Current Liabilities (Payable from Resfricted Assats)
Consumer Meter Deposits 249,644 252,118 249,644
Total Current Liabilittes
Payable from Restrictad Assets 249,844 252,118 249,644 0
Total Current Liabilities 996,714 900,336 996,714 ]
Noncurrent Liabilifies ! .
Compensated Absences 4,434 4650 4,434
Notes Payable . 14,533 20,504 14,533
Net Pension Liability 318,237 310,610 319,237
Revenue Bonds Payable {net of unamortized
premiums of $35,477) 1,582,558 1,758,400 1,582,559
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,820,763 2,094,164 1,820,763 0
Total Liabilities 2917 477 2,994 500 2917477 0
Met Position
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 4411908  A455779 4,411,908 0
Restricted for:
Construction {Expendabie) 165,344 137,680 165,344
Unrestricted 1,152,314 1,149,560 1,152,314 142,337
Total Nef Position $5,729,566  §$5743019 35720566 $142,337

The notes to the finanial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITICN

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 GOVERN-
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES MENTAL
- ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES-
UTILITY UTILITY TOTALS INTERNAL
CURRENT PRIOR CURRENT SERVICE
YEAR YEAR YEAR FUND
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services - Water and Sewer $1,118,894  §1.082411  $1,116,804 $0
Charges for Services - Sewer 647,439 625,990 647,439
Charges for Services - Other 85,646 86,892 85,646
Miscellaneous 4,104 4991 4,104
Total Qperating Revenues 1,854,083 1,800,284 1,854,083 0
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal Services 728,222 630,041 728,222
Supplies 102,571 81,773 102,571
Qther Services and Charges 529,954 435035 520,954 0
Depreciation 215,553 250,022 215,553
Total Operating Experises 1,676,300 1,408,871 1,576,300 0
Operating Income {Loss) 277,783 393413 277,783 0
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
intergovernmental 0 0 0
interest Income 990 15,806 990 K|
Interest and Fiscal Charges {34,509) {6,855) (34,509)
Total Non-Cperating Revenues {Expenses) {33,519) 8,851 (33,519 T
Income Before Transfers 244,264 402,364 244,264 7
Transfers [n (Ouf)-Net (257,717) {557,409 {257,717}
Change in Net Position {13,453) {155,045) (13,453} 71
Total Net Position - Beginning - Restated 5,743,019 5808064 5743019 142,266
Total Net Position - Ending $5,720586 35743019  $5,720566 $142,337

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemant.
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CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Cusiomers and Users
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital
and Related Financing Activities
Transfars Out
State and Federal Grant Receipts
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capitat
and Related Finanging Aclivities

Cash Flows fram Capital and Releted Financing Acfiviiies
Principal Payment on Revenue Bonds, Notes
and Capital Leases
Amortization of Bond lssuance Premium
Proceeds from Capital Debt
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Purchases of Capital Assets

MNet Cash Provided (Used) By Capital
and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Received

Net Cash Provided {Used)
by investment Acfivities

Net increase (Decrease) in Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalenis at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Unrestricted Assats:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Agsets:
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Total

{continued)
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GOVERN-
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES MENTAL
- ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIITIES-
UTLTY  UTITY  TOTALS  INTERNAL
CURRENT  PROR  CURRENT  SERVICE
YEAR YEAR YEAR FUND
$197479¢  $1.912185 1,974,794 $0
(636,428)  (540,199)  (B36.426) 0
(732799)  (B22.745)  (732.799)
605560 749221 605,569 0
(257,717)  (S57.409)  (267,717)
0 0 0
O57.77) @67 400) (257,717 0
(209,008) ©  (38,333)  (200,003)
(1,866) (1,866)
0 1700433 0
(34,509) (6,855  (34,500)
(49353)  (130,150)  (493,532)
(738,910) 1534005 (736,910) 0
950 15,808 990 71
580 15,806 950 71
(300,068) 1741713 (390,088 71

3,681,181 1830468 3,681,181 142,266

$3291,113  $3691,181  $3,291,113 $142,337

$2,046177  $1937161  $2,046177 $142,337

1244936 1744020 1,244,936 0

$3.291,113  $3681,481  $3,201,113 $142,337




(continued)

GOVERN-
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES MENTAL
- ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES-
UTILITY uTiuEy TOTALS INTERNAL
CURRENT PRIOR CURRENT  SERVICE
YEAR YEAR YEAR
Reconeiliation of eperating income to
net cash provided {used) by operating
activities: ' :
Operating Income (Loss) $277,783 $393413 $277,783 $0
Adjustments to Reconcile o Net Cash Flow
Non-Cash ltems Inciudad in Net Income
Depraciafion 215,653 250,022 215,553 0
Changes in Current [tems
Decraase {Increase) in Accounts Receivable {5,352) (27,003) (6,352
Decreasa (Increase} in Inventorias 0 0 0
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 454 (25623) 454
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages _ 3,490 4467 3,490
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Interest Payable {4,355) 12,232 (4,355
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences (432 2829 (432
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenus 128,537 128,391 128,537
Increase (Decrease) in Consumer Meter Deposits (2,474) 10,583 (2474} 0
Decrease (Increase) Deferred Outflow of Resources-Contributions {10,360) {10,360)
Decrease (Increase) Deferred Outflow-Investment Experience : (3,770} (3.770)
Decrease (Increase) Deferred Quiflow-Actual Exp. vs. Assumption (2,132 (2,132}
Increase (Decrease) in Net pension Liability . 8,627 8,627
Net Cash Provided (Used)
By Operating Activities $605,569 $749,221 $505,569 30
Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activifies:
Bond Issuance Proceeds 0 1,709,433 0 $0
Total Noncash Investing, Capital, and Finanging Activities: $0 1,709,433 0 $0

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

25



CITY OF SINTON, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

|. Summary of significant accounting policies

A

Reporting entity

The City of Sinton, Texas, was incorporated by an election held on March 1, 1916. The City operates under a
charter, Manager-Council type of government and provides the following services: public safety (fire, ambuiance,
and law enforcement), public transportation (streets), health, culture, recreation, public facilities, legal, election
functions, and general administrative services. The accounting policies of the City of Sinton, Texas, (the City)
conform to generally accepted accounting principles. The City also applies all relevant Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The following is a summary of the more significant policies.

Blended Component Unit

The Sinton Economic -Development Corporation is governed by a board appointed by the City Council who has
the ability to impose their will on the Sinton Economic Development Corporation. Although they are legally
separate from the City, the Sinton Economic Development Corporation is reported as if they are a part of the
primary government because their primary purpose is to provide services to the citizens of the City. The general
fund of this entity is reported as a special revenue fund of the City. Separate financial statements are not
prepared for the blended component unit.

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The City's Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of
Activities. These statements present summaries of Governmental and Business-Type Activities for the City
accompanied by a fotal column.

These statements are presented on an “economic resources’ measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources, including capital assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net
Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in Net Position. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in
which the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. The types of transactions reporied as
program revenues for the City are reported in three categories: 1) charges for services, 2} operating grants and
contributions, and 3} capital grants and contributions.

Certain eliminations have been made to interfund activities, payables, and receivables. All internal balances in the
Statement of Net Position have besen eliminated except those representing balances between the governmental
activities and the business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total
primary government column. In the Statement of Activities, internal service fund transactions have been
eliminated; however, those transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been
eliminated.
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Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds aggregated. An
accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in fund balances and changes in
fund balances as presented in these statements to the Net Position and ¢changes in Net Position presented in the
Government-Wide financial statements. The City has presented all major funds that met those qualifications.

All governmental funds are accounted for an a spending or “current financial resources” measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current liabiiities are included on
the Balance Sheets. (The City's deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are noncurrent.)
The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances present increases (revenues and
other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become
both measurable and available to fihance expenditures of the current period. Accordingly, revenues are recorded
when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual (generally 80 days after year-end) are recognized
when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the City, are
property taxes and franchise taxes. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund
liability is incurred.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those reqiired to be accounted for in another fund.

The Debt Service Fund for the City of Sinton, Texas, consists of the 1995 Certificates of Obligation. This fund has
been established to receive funds from a tax levy and other sources for the accumulation of funds to meet the
annual principal and interest requirements on the outstanding general obligation debt of the City.

The economic development fund functions to bring businesses to the Sinton area.

The 2014 tax note street improvement used to administer monies collected for street improvement and sewer
facility improvement. :
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Proprietary fund financial statements

Proprietary fund financial statements inciude a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and for the
non-major funds aggregated. :

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities (whether current or noncurrent), and
deferred inflows of resources are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total Net
Position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned
while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of
the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses

that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating
expenses.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The utility fund accounts for the activities of the government's water and sewer operations.

The internal service fund is used for seff insurance purposes of the city.
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E.

Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity

1.

Deposits and investments

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

State statutes authorize the government and the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury.
Investments for the government are reporied at fair value.

Receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end
of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund
loans) or "advances to/ffrom other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other
outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due toffrom other funds." Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as "internal balances."

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance
reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation
and are not expendable available financial resources.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Trade accounts
receivable allowance in excess of 30 days is equal to § percent of outstanding utility billings at September
30, 2015, the trade accounts receivable allowance in excess of 60 days is equal to 10 percent of
outstanding utility billings at September 30, 2015, the trade accounts receivable allowance in excess of
90 days is equal to 25 percent of outstanding utility billings at September 30, 2015, and the trade
accounts receivable allowance in excess of 120 days is equal to 50 percent of outstanding utility billings
at September 30, 2015. The property tax receivable allowance is equal fo 1 percent of current
outstanding property taxes at September 30, 2015, and 10-percent of delinquent outstanding property
taxes at September 30, 2015,

Property is appraised and a lien on such property becomes enforceable as of January 1, subject to
certain procedures for rendition, appraisal, appraisal review and judicial review. Traditionally, property
taxes are levied Qctober 1, of the year in which assessed or as soon thereafter as practicable. Taxes are
due and payable when levied since that is when the City bills the taxpayers. The City begins to collect the
taxes as soon as the taxpayers are billed.

Inventories and prepaid items

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method. inventories of governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
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4.

Restricted asseis

The restricted assets at September 30, 2015 were as follows:

Interest 2014 Tax
and Economic Note Street Other
Sinking  Development Improvement Governmental Utility
Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Total
Debt Ssrvice $707,719 $530,673 $1,238,392
Fire Safefy 153,281 153,281
Future Projects 1,458,801 1,458,801
Consfruction 424,768 300533 1244936 2,069,237

Total Restricted Assets  $707,719  $1,980.474 $424,768 §552,814  $1.244936 $4,919,711

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 {amount not rounded) and an estimated useful
life'in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date
of donafion.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The City had strest improvements and sewer facility
improvements during the year which were financed by a 2014 bond.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 50
Building improvements 20
Public Domain infrastructure 50
Systern infrastruciure 30
Vehicles 5
Office equipment 5
Computer eguipment 5

Compensated absences

It is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. There is no liabifity for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the government does not have a
policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with the government. All vacation pay
is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, and proprietary fund financial statements.
Compensated absences are reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured with respect to
terminated employees who have an unpaid balance of reimbursable unused leave. A liahility for these
amounts is reported in governmental funds.
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Long-term obligations

fn the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable govemnmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicabie bond premium or discount.
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reporied as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

As of September 30, 2015, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable — amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or
because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of City
Council. City Council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City. Commitments may be
established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by City Council.
Unassigned — all other spendable amounts.

As of September 30, 2015, fund balances are compaosed of the following:

Fund Balances:

Non-Spendable
Inveniories . $9,856
Restricted
Debt Service 707,719
Construction 832,023
Economic Development 1,989,474
Public Safety 163,259
Committed
Construction 40,816
Unassigned 539,838
Total Fund Balance $4,272,986

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for
which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances ars available, the City considers amounts to
have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as
needed, unless City Council or the finance commiltee has provided otherwise in its commitment or
assignment actions.
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10.

11.

In fiscal year 2011, the City Council adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund. The
policy requires the unassigned fund balance at fiscal year end to be at least equal to 20 to 25 percent of
the subsequent year's budgefed General Fund expenditures.

Comparative data/reclassifications

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented only for individual enterprise funds in the
fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the financial position and
operations of these funds. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified
in order to be consistent with the current year’s presentation.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies o a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure} until then. The government only has one
item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred charge on refunding repotted in the
government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in
the camrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized
over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement slement, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future pericd(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only ons type of item, which arises
anly under a modified acgrual basis of accounting, that gualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly,
the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues from two sources: property taxes and special
assessments. These amounts are deferred and recoghized as an inflow of resources In the period that
the amounts become available.

Net position flow assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to caiculate the amounts to report as
restricted - net position and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the government's policy to consider restricted - net position to have been
depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied.
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. Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial siatements

A Explanation of ceriain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-
wide statement of net position

The governmental fund balance includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental
funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
position. One element of that recongiliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable,
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds." The details of
this $3,812,810 difference are as follows:

Bonds Payable $2,520,000
Bond Premium 29,366
Net Pension Liabifity 1,196,608
Compensated Absences 66,838

$3,812,810

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net
position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One
element of that reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of this $7,240,287 difference are as follows:

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated $1.084,823
Capital Assets Being Depreciated 10,498,836
Depreciation Expense (4,343,372)
Net Adjustment to

Increase Net Changes

in Fund Balances - Total

Gavernmental Funds to

Arrive at Changes in

Net Position of

Governmental Activities $7,240,287

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund batance - total govemmental
funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
position. One element of that reconciliation explains that "Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for
current period expenditures are deferred in the funds (net of allowance for uncollectibles).” Details of this
$214,968 difference are as follows:

Property Taxes Receivable © $232,208
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (17,330)
Net $214.968
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The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental
funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
position. One element of that reconciliation explains that "Municipal fines and fees receivable unavailable
to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds (net of allowance for uncollectibies).”
Detalils of this $64,987 difference are as follows:

Fines and Fees Recesivable $141,558
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (76,571)
Net $64,987

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net
position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One
element of that reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense." The details of this $599,131 difference are as follows:

Capital Qutlay - Additions - Not Being Depreciated ~ $932,135

Capital Outlay - Additions - Being Depreciated 61,500
Capital Cutlay - Deletions {80.436)
Depreciation Expense {314,068)
Net Adjustment to

Increase Net Changes

in Fund Balances - Total

Governmental Funds to

Arrive at Changes in

Net Position of .
Governmental Activities $599,131
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Stewardship, compliance, and accountability

A.

Budgetary information

The City Manager has been authorized by the council to prepare the budget. He is assisted by the City
Office Manager and City Secretary. The budget is adopted on budgetary basis in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. After the budget is prepared, It is reviewed by the City Council.
The budget is adjusted by the City Council if desired. Then a final budget is prepared by the Ciy
Manager. A public hearing is held on the budget by the City Council. Department heads may appear.
Before determining the final budget, the City Council may increase or decrease the amounts requested by
the various departments or citizens. Amounts finally budgeted may not exceed the estimate of revenues
and available cash. Appropriations [apse at year end.

The Generai fund is the enly governmental fund that has Iégally adopted an annual budget.

When the budget is adopted by the City Council, the City Manager is responsible for monitoring the
expenditures of the various departments of the City to prevent expenditures from exceeding budgeted
appropriations and for keeping the members of the City Council advised of the conditions of the various
funds and accounts. The level of control is the department. Expenditures can exceed appropriations as
long as they do not exceed available revenues and cash balances. The legal level of control (the level on
which the City Council must approve over expenditures) is at the department level.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The government's department
heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between
departments require the approval of the council. The legal level of budgetary control (ie., the level at
which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the department level. The council made
several supplemental budgetary appropriations throughout the year. The supplemental budgetary
appropriations made in the general fund were not material.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders,
contracts) outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be re-appropriated and honored during the
subsequent year. There were no outstanding encumbrances at September 30, 2015.

Excess of expenditures over appropriations

There was no change between the original budget and the final amended budget in the general fund.
QOverall, actual expenditures in the general fund of $3,755,232 were more than the budgeted expenditures
of $3,567,634 by $187,598.

Deficit fund equity

The City had no deficit fund balances as of September 30, 2015,
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Detailed notes on all funds
A Deposits and investments
Legal and Contractual Provisions Governing Deposits and Investments:

The Public Funds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256) contains specific provisions in the areas of
investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies. Among other things, it
requires the City to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must address the following
areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable
risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7)
maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8)
investment staff quality and capabilities, (9) and bid solicitation preferances for certificates of deposit. Statutes
authorize the City to invest in (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas;
(2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase
agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) Mutual Funds, (8) Investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment
contracts, (10) and common trust funds. The Act also requires the City to have independent auditors perform test
procedures related to investment practices as provided by the Act. The City is not in substantial compliance with
the requirements of the Act and with local policies.

Policies Governing Deposits and Investments

In compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, the City has adopted a deposit and investment policy. That
policy does address the following risks:

Custodial credit risk - deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
government’s deposits may not be retumed to it. The government has a formal policy for custodial credit risk. As
of September 30, 2015, the govemment's bank balance of $8,448,912 was not exposed to custodial credit risk
because it was fully insured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust
department or agent, in the government's name. The fair market value of the securities pledged is $9,419,503
and the FDIC coverage is $250,000. The book amount of cash at September 30, 2015 is $8,317,650.

36



B.

Receivables

Receivables as of year end for the government’s individual major funds and non-major funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Water
and
General Sewer Total

Receivables

Property Taxes $232,208 $232,298
Sales Taxes 0
EMS 2.411,688 2,411,688
Accounts 23,789 295,553 319,342
Fines 141,558 141,558
Other 67,299 150 67,449

Gross Receivables 2,876,632 295703 3,172,335
Less: Allowance for
Uncollectibles 2,112,376 30,052 2,142,428

Net Total Receivables  $764,256 $285,851  $1,029,907

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in
connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the
various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as
follows:

Unearned

Revenue
Library Damage Payments $ 36,512
Bulidozer account 147,004
School Zone Court Costs 41,130
Sinton Golf Assn. Lease Payments 67,500
8 Liner Receipts 159,922
Several immaterial accounts 313412
Total deferred/unearned

revenue for governmental funds 765
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C.

Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2015 was as follows:

Govemmental Activities: Beginning Ending
Capital assets not being depreciated: Balances  Incremses Decreases  Balances
Land $62,250 $62,2650
Construction in Progress 90,438 932,135 1,022,573
Total capital assets not being depreciated: 152,688 832,135 0 1,084,823
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and Improvements 5416407 5,416,407
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles 2,335,993 61,500 2,397,493
Infrastructure 2,666,062 2,666,062
Intangible Assets 18,874 18,874
Total capital assets being depreciated: 10,437,336 61,500 0 10,498,836
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:
Building and Improvements 1402,545 110,748 1,513,293
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles 2,027,125 151,514 2,178,639
[nfrastructure 584,535 48,031 632,566
Intangible Assets 15,099 3,775 18,874
Total Accumulated Depreciation 4,029,304 314,068 0 4,343,372
Total Capital Assets Depreciated, Net 6,408,032 (252,568) 6,155,464
Governmental Activiies capital assets, Net 56,560,720  $679,567 $0  §7,240,287
Adjusted
Business-Type Acfivities: Beginning , Ending
Capital assets not being depreciated: Balances  Increases Decreases  Balances
Land $4,000 $4,000
Consfruction in Progress 72,354 493532 565,386
Total capital assets not being depreciated: 76,354 493,532 0 560,886
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and Improvements 9,548,368 9,548,368
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles 1,084,415 1,084,415
Intangible Assets 6,190 6,190
Total capitai assets being depreciated: 10,638,973 0 0 10,638,973
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:
Building and Improvements 5,080,576 164,706 5,225,282
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles 949,984 49,610 999,504
Intangible Asssts 4,952 1,238 6,190
Total Accumulated Depreciation 6,015,512 215554 0 6,231,066
Total Capital Assets Depreciated, Net 4,623.461 (215,554 0 4407907
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net _$4,690,815  $277,978 $0 94,977,793
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Aclivities

(General Administration $1,638
Public Safety 164,704
Public Transportation 55,164
Culture and Recreation 92,562

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities  $314,068

Business-Type Activities
Water and Sewer $215,553
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Acfivities  $215,553

Construction during the year: The City had street improvements and sewer facility improvements during the year
which were financed by a 2014 bond.

Interfund receivables, payables, and fransfers
There were Due to/from cther funds at September 30, 2015.
There were no advances at September 30, 2015,

The interfund fund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2015 were as follows:

ACCOUNT AMOUNT REASON

GENERAL FUND
TRANSFER FROM WATER/SEWER FUND $400,000 CITY ADMINISTRATION
TRANSFER FROM WATER/SEWER FUND 31,000 STREET USEFEES
TRANSFER TOQ INTEREST AND SINKING FUND FUND  (263,887) DEBT SERVICE
WATER/SEWER FUND
TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND {400,000) CITY ADMINISTRATICN
TRANSFER TC GENERAL FUND {31,000) STREET USEFEES
TRANSFER FROM INTEREST AND SINKING FUND 173,283 DEBT SERVICE
INTEREST AND SINKING FUND

- TRANSFER TO WATER/SEWER FUND {173,283) DEBT SERVICE
TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 263,887 DEBT SERVICE

—

All of the transfers were recurring.
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Leases
Operating Leases
The government leases equipment under noncancelable operating leases. Total costs for such leases were

$9,622 for the year ended September 30, 2015. The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as
follows:

Year Ending Sep. 30 Amount
2016 : $ 7,482
2017 6,652
2018 3,492
2019 0
2020 0
Total $17.626
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Long-term debt
Certificate of Obligation Bonds

The government issues Certificate of Obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and constructions of
major capital facilities. Certificate of Obligation bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type
activities. The original amount of the Certificate of Obligation bonds issued in prior years for the Governmental
activities was $3,145,000 and the original amount of Certificate of Obligation Bonds issued in prior years for the
Business-type activities was $500,000.

The government issued $3,000,000 of Series 2014 bonds during the year 2015. Semi-annual payments are to be
made starting in 2015 through the year 2034. The rate of interest varies from 2% to 4%.

The government also incurred a TCEQ environmental penalty of $30,740. This penalty is to be paid off by monthly
payments of $853. There is no interest expense associated with this note. The balance at September 30, 2015 is
$24,769.

Certificates of Obligation bonds and tax notes issued for governmental activities are direct obligations and pledge
the full faith and credit of the government and the Certificate of Obligation bonds issued for business-type
activities are secured soiely by specified revenue sources.

Certificate of Obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Purpose Rates Amount

Governmental activities, Series 2014 20-4.0 $ 1,285,000
Governmental activities, Series 2007 427 $ 1,045,000
Governmental activities, Series 2009 3.0-45 $ 180,000
Business-type activities, Series 2014 20-40 $ 1,610,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Certificates of Obligation bonds are as follows:

Year Ending Governmental Activities  Business-Type Aclivities
September 30,  Principal  Interest  Principal Interest

2016 $295415 $102582  $104,585  $58,621
2017 298,748 91,184 106,252 55,454
2018 222,879 80,980 112,321 51,792
2019 131,697 74,204 68405 48871
2020 136,610 69,286 68,390 46,820
2021-2025 777,018 262,937 382,982 201,065
2026-2030 586,364 118,545 448,836 131,992
2031-2034 355513 20,211 429487 35,289
TOTALS $2,803,046 $828999 §1,721,056  $629,904

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Tax Notes are as follows:

YearEnding  Business-Type Activities
September 30,  Principal Interest

2016 $10,236
2017 10,236
2018 4,297
TOTALS $24,769 $0
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Changes in long-term liabilities:

Beginning Ending  DueWithin  Due After
Balance  Additions Reductions  Balance One Year  One Year

Governmental Activities:

Bonds Payable $3,076,970 556,870 $2,520000 $212.082 $2,307,918
Bond Premium 30,912 1,546 29,366 29,366
Net Pension Liability ©o1,164,269 32,337 : 1,196,606 0 1,196,606
Tax Notes Payable 215,000 215,000 0 0 0

Total Bonds Payable - 4,487 151 32,337 773,516 3,745,472 212,082 3,533,800

Compensated Absences Payable 53,163 66,838 58,163 66,838 33,419 33419
4,545,314 99,175 831679 3812810 245,501 3,567,309

Business-Type Activities:

Bonds Payable 1,813,032 203,032 1,510,000 62,918 1,547,082
Bond Premium 37,344 1,867 35477 35477
Net Pension Liability 310,610 8,627 319,237 0 319,237
TCEQ Note Payable 30,740 5871 24,169 10,236 14,533

Total Bonds Payable 2,191,726 8,627 210,870 1,989,483 73,154 1,916,328

Compensated Absences Payable 9,300 8,868 9,300 8,868 4,434 4434
2201026 17495 220170 1998351 77,588 1,920,763

Grand Total $6,746,340 $116670  1,051.849 5811161 323,088 5,488,072

The general fund and the utility fund are used to service the compensated absences. The estimated amount due
in the 2015-16 year is $37,853. The City estimates that approximately half of the compensated absences will be
used in the 2015-2018 year.

The government-wide statement of activities includes $323,089 as "noncurrent liabilities, due within one year".
There was no interest capitalized. All of the interest was expensed.

The utility fund is used to service the revenue bonds. The general fund and the utility fund are used tc service the
series 2014 combination tax and revenue bonds which were originally issued for $3,000,000 and have a year end
balance of $2,905,000. The sconomic development fund is used fo service the series 2007 combination tax and
revenue bonds which were originally issued for $1,500,000 and have a ysar end balance of $1,045,000 and the
series 2009 refunding bonds which were originally issued for $645,000 and have a year end balance of $180,000.
The utility fund is used to service the TCEQ penalty payments which have a year end balance of $24,769.
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Other information

A. Risk management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Claim liabilities are estimated considering the effects
of inflation, recent claim settlement trends (including frequency and amounts of payouts) and other economic and
social factors (including the effects of specific, incremental claim adjustment expense, salvage and subrogation).

Changes in accrued liabilities for these claims follow:

Year ended Year ended

09/30114 09/30/15

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year $ -0~ $ -0-
Incurred claims (including IBNRS)

Claim payments -0- -0-

Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year 3 -0- § -0

General Liability Insurance

The City is insured for general, police officers and automobile liability. Expenditures for self-insured liabilities are
accounted for in the General Fund, which will pay any liabilities incurred.

The City has joined together with other governments in the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool
(TML). The City pays an annual premium to TML for auto vehicle insurance coverage. The agreement with TML
provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial
companies for claims in excess of $500,000 to $1,000,000 for each insurance event. The City anticipates no
contingent losses.

TML has published its own financial report that can be obtained from the Texas Municipal League
Intergovernmental Risk Pool, Austin, Texas.

* The City carries commercial fidelity bonds for elected officials and for management.
Property and Casualty Insurance

Property, casualty, mobile equipment, boiler and machinery insurance ig provided by TML.

Workers' Compensation Insurance
The City insures against workers' compensation claims through TML.
Group Health and Life Insurance

The City maintains a group health insurance plan for active employees and their eligible dependents. Costs are
recorded in the fund from which the employees' compensation is paid.

Unemployment Compensation Insurance
The City self-insures for unemployment compensation claims through an agreement with the Texas Workforce

Commission (TWC). Under the agreement, TWC administers ali claims and is reimbursed by the City for claims
incurred plus administrative charges.
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Other post employment benefits

Ref. Ordinance No. 1998-10, Chapter 32.5, Retiree’s Medical Insurance adopted and approved by the Sinton City
Council on the 15" day of September 1998.

The City of Sinton will pay full-ime Retiree’s Medical Heaith Insurance. The City Retiree must have at least
twenty-five (25) years of credit service with Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and must be drawing a
retirement check. This policy will go into affect with the passing of this ordinance and will not be retroactive, but
starting from the time of passage. This is to be added to the “Employee Policy Manual® under Chapter 7.00
Benefits, Section 7.05 Employment Insurance.

Research of the past 40 years has shown that there have been 3 employess who had 25 or more years of service
with the City of Sinton. Under the Ordinance, the City of Sinton has two (2) retired employee who has qualified for
this benefit. As of October 1, 2013, the City of Sinton’s monthly premium expense for this employee is $415.36
monthly to TML and $115.40 to Humana.

The City of Sinton currently has 56 employees who are contributing to TMRS.

1- 30 Yrs Service Age =53
1- 29 Yrs Service Age =58
1- 27 Yrs Service Age =48
1- 23 Yrs Service Age =61
1- 20 Yrs Service Age = 58
1- 19 Yrs Service Age = 42
Under 10 Yrs Service Age = 43

With the high turn-over rate that the City has experienced in the past several years, it is anticipated that of those
48 employees who have 15 years or less of service, only 6% or approximately 3 employees will attain the
raquired 25 year tenure.

A survey of the 6 employees have shown that 3 plan fo continue working until the age of 66, and the other 3
employees working until the age of 82. This, of course, is assuming no unforeseen changes, such as health,
employment status, etc., that would prohibit the employees from reaching each one's goal.

The City Sinton is currently insured thru the Texas Municipal League Intergovemmental Employee Benefits Pool.
The monthly premium for the health insurance, including life/AD&D and dental, is $529.35. Only the full time
employees, those who are participating in TMRS, are eligible for the City's health insurance.

With the constant variance in factors, such as annual experience in claims, general adjustments in premiums, and
the ever changing political climate, predicting what the City's insurance expense will be for the next fiscal year
much less 5 or even 10 years into the future is anyone's guess. An educated guess would be that there will be
increases, and those increases will be the determining factor as to whether the City of Sinton as well as other
employers will be able to provide health insurance benefits and how much will be left to the employee to pay.
Whatever those costs will be will also affect the benefits for the retired employess.

Based on the above we consider the expense amount to the City is considered immaterial and thus is not
included in the City-wide financial statements either as an expense or a liability.
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Contingent liahilities

Amounts received or receivabie from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot
be determined at this time, aithough the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City was not a defendant in any lawsuit at September 30, 2015.

Subsequent Events

On October 20, 2015 the City accepted a bid from Frazer, Ltd. in the amount of $141,825 for the purchase of an
ambulance for Sinton EMS.

Related party transaction

Bill Moore, a Council Member-owns Moore's Pharmacy. The City EMS does purchase some supplies and in the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 the City paid $913.

Construction and other commitments

The City had street improvements and sewer facility improvements during the year which were financed by a
2014 bond.
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Prior Period Adjustments
The City has determined that certain transactions were recorded incorrectly in a prior year.

The City had & prior period adjustment where by both governmental and business-type activities and Net Pension
Liability were decreased by $934,254 and $249,245, respectively. The restatement was a result of the City
implementing GASB 68.

Additionally, the City decreased beginning accounts receivable by $19,830 in the governmental funds. This
amount was on hand at the end of last year and should have been eliminated at September 30, 2014. The City
also adjusted the beginning restricted assts fo reflect a write-off of the $75,330 reserve for the Series 1997
Revenue bonds.

These restatements had a corresponding effect on the beginning net assets.

Nef Assets, Accounts
as Previously  GASB 68 Receivable  Net Assets
Reported Restatement Restatement As Restated

Governmental Activities:
Net Assets 30463300  ($934,254) {$19,830)  $8,509,216
Total Governmental Activities $9,463,300 {$934,254) ($10,830)  $8,509,216

Net Assets, Bond
as Previously ~ GASB 68 Deposit Net Assets
Reported Restatement Restatement As Restated

Business-Typs Activities:
Net Asssts $6,067594  ($249,245) {$75,330)  $5743,019

Total Business-Type Activities $6,067,584  (§249,245) ($75,330)  $5,743,018

Net Assefs, Accounts
as Previously Receivable  Net Assets
Reported Restatement  As Restated

Governmentai Funds
Fund Balance $5,811,750 ($19,830)  $5791,020

Total Governmental Funds $5,811,750 ($19,830)  $5,791,920
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Defined Benefit Pension Plans
A. Plan Description

The City of Sinton participates as one of 860 plans in the nontraditional, joint, contributory, hybrid defined
benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency
created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas
Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees
in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the System with a
six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the
Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a tax-
qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at www. tmrs.com. All eligible employees
of the city are required to participate in TMRS.

B. Benefits Provided -

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing body
of the city, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the empioyee's contributions, with interest, and the city-
financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may choose to receive their
retirement benefit in one of seven payments options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their
benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which
cannot exceed 75% of the member's deposits and interest.

Valuation Date:

Notes

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31
and become effective in January, 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry AgeNormal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining Amortization 30vears

Period

Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 15% softcorridor
Inflation 1.0%

Salary Increases 3.50% to 12.00% including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of benefits.
Last updated for the 2010 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the
period 2005 - 2009

Mortality RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male
rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and projected on
a fully generational basis with scale BB

Other Information:

Notes There were no benefit changes during the year.
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Employees covered by benefit terms.

Actuarial Valuation and Measurement Date, December 31, 2013 2014
Membership
Number of:
- Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 20 20
- Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 38 39
- Active employees 49 39
- Total ‘ 107 118

C. Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross earnings, and the
city matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of the city.
Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary,
using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated
amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount
to finance any unfunded accrued liability. '

Employees for the City of Sinton were required to contribute 7.00% of their annual gross earnings during the
fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City of Sinton were 13.15% and 12.85% in calendar years 2014 and
2015, respectively. The city's contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2015, were $289,482,
and were equal to the required contributions.

D. Net Pension Liability

The city's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31,2014, and the Total Pension Liability
(TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions:

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Inflaticn 3.0% per year

Overall payroll growth 3.0% per year

Investment Rate of 7.0%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Return

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and
beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, with male rates
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by
scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000
Disabled Retiree Mortality Table is used, with slight adjustments.
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Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014, valuation were based on the results of actuarial
experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period January 1, 2006 through December 31,
2009, first used in the December 31, 2010 valuation. Healthy post-retirement mortality rates and annuity
purchase rates were updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through
2011, and dated December 31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation,
along with a change to the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. Assumptions are reviewed
annually. No additional changes were made for the 2014 valuation.

The long-term expected rate of refurn on pension plan investments is 7.0%. The pension plan's policy in
regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TMRS Board of Trustees.
Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the
production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using & building-block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return {Arithmetic)
Domestic Equity 17.5% 4.80%
international Equity 17.5% 6.05%
Core Fixed Income 30.0% 1.50%
Non-Core Fixed Income 10.0% 3.50%
Real Return 5.0% 1.75%
Real Estate 10.0% 5.25%
Absolute Return 5.0% 4.25%
Private Equity 5.0% 8.50%
Total 100.0%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.0%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the rates
specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

CURRENT PERIOD
A, Total pension liability
1. Service Cost $ 242,487
2. Interest (on the Total Pension Liability) 496,612
3. Changes of benefit terms 0
4. Difference batween expected and actual experience 14,629
5. Changes of assumptions 0
6. Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (302,873)
7. Net change in total pension liability $ 450,855
8. Total pension liability—beginning 7,124,655
9. Total pension liability-ending ¥ 1,575,510
B. Plan fiduciary net position
1. Contributions - employer 5 255,224
2. Contributions - employee 137,959
3. Net investment income 323,232
4, Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (302,873)
5. Administrative Expense G374)
6. Other ' {277)
7. Net change in plan fiduciary net position 8 409,891
40,
8. Plan fiduciary net position -beginning 5,642,776
9. Planfiductarynet position -ending 3 6,059,667
3 1,515,843
C. Netpensionliability [A.9-8.9)
D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 79.99%
of the total pension liability [B.9/ A.9)
$ 1,970,842
E. Cavered-employee payroll
F. Net pension liability as a percentage 76.91%

of covered employee payroll [C/ E)

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate
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The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.0%, as well
as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower (6.0%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.0%) than the current rate:

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

1% Decrease Current Single Rate 1% Increase
6.00% Assumption 7.00% 8.00%
52,688,721 $1,515,843 $569,853

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued
TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www. fmrs.cotn.

E. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $228,263.

SCHEDULE OF PENSION EXPENSE

. Total Service Cost 3 242,487
2. interest on the Total Pension Liability ' 496,612
3. Current Period Benefit Changes 0
4. Employee Contributions (Reduction of Expense) {137,959}
5. Projected Earnings on Plan Investments (Reduction of Expense) (395,484)
6. Administrative Expense 3,374
7. Other Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 277
8. Recognition of Current Year OQutflow {Inflow) of Resources-Liabilities 4,506
9. Recognition of Current Year Outflow {Inflow) of Resources-Assets 14,450
10. Amortization of Prior Year Outflows {Inflows) of Resources-Liabilities 4]
Il. Amortization of Prior Year Outflows (inflows) of Resources-Assets 0
12, Total Pension Expense > 228,263
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At September 30, 2015, the city reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related

to pensions from the following sources:

SCHEDULE OF OUTFLdWS AND INFLOWS - CURRENT AND FUTURE EXPENSE

Recognition
Period (or
amortization
vrs)

Due to Liabiiities:

Difference in expected
and actual experience 3.2469
[actuarial (gains) or losses]

Difference in assumption changes 3.2489

[actuarial (gains} or losses]

_Dueto Ascets:

Difference in projected
and actual earnings 5.0000
on pensian plan investments

[actuarial {gains) or losses]

Total:

2014

Total {Inflow) Recognized Deferred
or Qutflow of in current (Inflow)/Outflow
Resources in future expense
) 14,629 [ 4,506 S 10,123
5 e 3§ 0 $ 0
§ 4,506 4 10,123
s 72,252 [ 14,450 [ 57,802
§ 14,450 3 57,802
5 67,925

$67,925 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent
10 the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the year ending

September 30, 2016.
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources, by year, to be recognized in future pension expense as
follows:

Net deferred
outflows
(inflows) of
rES0Urces
2015 $ 18,956
2016 18,956
2017 15,561
2018 14,452
2019 0
Thereafter 0
Total 3 67,925
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Last 10 Years (will ultimately be displayed)

2014 2015 2016 2017

Total pension liability
Service Cost 242,487 $ oo $ wopoor  $ o0
Interest (on' the Total Pension Liability) 496,612 0K,XHK XEXXXX XXX, XXX
Changes of benefit terms 0 XX, XXX XXX, XXX XXX, XXX
Difference between expected and actual experience 14,629 XXX, XKX XXX, XXX XXX, XXX
Change of assumptions ¢ HEX, XXX XXX, XXX XXX, XXX
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions (302,873} XXX, XXX OO XXX XX, XXX
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 450,855 R, KHK XXX, XXX XKX, XXX
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 7,124,655 pee@oed KXEAXK UK, XXX
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 7,575,510 $ oxxox § owoxxx 0 xoomx
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer 255,224 $ oo § oxomx o oxogax
Coniributions - Empioyee 137,959 KAKXXX XXX, XXX XX, XXX
Net Investment Income 323,232 HAK, XXX XX XXX XXX, XXX
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee :
contributions (302,873) XN, XXX XX, XXX KA HHA
Administrative Expense (3,374) KKK, XXX XXX, XXX XX, XXX
Other (277) XXX 20X XXX XXX XXX XXX
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 409,391 XXX, XX XX XXX XXX, XXX
Pian Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 5.649.776 WAL XXX XXX, XXX XAXXHK
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) 3 6,059,667 $ xoxoox 8 ooix 8 xorwox
Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) 1,515,843 XXX, XXX KHRAXXX XXH, XXX
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of Total Pension Liability 79.99% 1.x%x% xxx% x.Xx%
Covered Employee Payroll 1,970,842 XXX, XXX KAK, XXX XXX, XXX
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage

76.91% xxx% ®.xx% xxx%

of Covered Employce
Payroll Notes to Schedule:
NIA

Note to City:

GASB 68 requires 10 fiscal years of data to be provided in this schedule. GRS will provide the

current year results. The employer will be required to build this schedule over the next 10-year

period.
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Last 10 Fiscal Years (will ultimately be displayed)

Actuarially Determined Cantribution

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution

Contribution deficiency {excess)

Covered employee payroll
Contributions as a percentage of covered

employee payroll

2014 2015 2016 2017

XHK, KKK XXH,XKX XX, XKX XXX, XXX
XOLEXX XAK XXX XXX XA
HXKXKX XXX, XXX XA XXX KKK, XKX
KKK, XXX XK, XXX AR HEN KKK, XXX
AEXxY% Xx.xx% xx.xx% xx.xx%
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Valuation Date:
Notes

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31
and become effective in January 13 months later,

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribation Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization
Period
Asset Valuation Method

Inflation
Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Other Information:

Notes

Entry Age Normal
Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
29 years

10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor
3.0%

3.50% to 12.00% including inflation

7.00%

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of benefits.
Last updated for the 2010 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the
period 2005 - 2009

RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male
rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and projected
on a fully generational basis with scale BB

There were no benefit changes during the year.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAE FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES



156 6VLS
G06'g}4
018'0%

65¢ 'S4}
06F'+2S

gee'ted
99¢°Led

LS6'6R2$
#1788

LEL'161S
anns

TYINIW
“NE2A0D

HOryinENON

1oL

A

622'G8LY 182'€51$ 806'LLE
]! R 0
£62'5)
gLI'sa
957 61 228 206 11
| el 228 90611
7 els  1oreals 808 1S
: AT
emams 08 206'L18

DNISNOH LNIWNAOY T ONINNYID

FTEVAOAY anv F0Usng
NOLNIS LNINGNDT  TYNIARID
24
ANNIADY TVIDILS

STINVIVE ANAd
aNY S1LM1EYIT TVLOL

SgIuB|eg pund [EJo]
LOIONLSUeD
papIWLIO)
fajes Hand
LOJONAISUOY
pajInsay
‘saoueeg pund

Saljiper 2oL
a|qeAR| SJUN0ITY
sanliqen

S3INYTVE ONN ONY SALLINEY

$13S8Y W10L
syugjennhis ysey pue yseo
51988y pAOMSIY
sjuaieamby yses pue ysen
S1358Y

SL0Z 0C ¥3ENALdTS

SANMA TYLNIWNYIAOD HOMIN-NON
193HS FINVIYE ONINIEWOD

SYX3L 'NOLNIS 30 ALID



g

m%“ﬂa £.2'618 662'261% 0%
£65'999 ECavl 896151 0
£/6'19 05872} 10E' 1T ]
0
£6°19 08e'sl 10gE 0
0 0 0 0
5 :
0
0
£46'L9 0GE°L1 LOg' L2 [i]
S9Z'LL 5921}
6¥ g 3
B9E'PS osz' )zt
ann4d £ ; AOHaNEE  DNISNOH ANFWAITY ONINNY D
TVINZW ERlhaleEEL any Joisnr
“NHIAQD NGLNIS 1NINWLIND3 TYNINIYD
HOMVIENON T
WLIOL INNIATY T¥ID3dS

JBaA JO pud Je aouefeq pund
lea )\ jo Buuwbag je soueieg pund

saouejeq puny i abueya jaN
uj sigjsuel] Bugeiado
(535A) SIIUNOS DNIINYNIS HIHLO

sainypuadx3 {ispup)
JANQ) s8nUsABY Jo {Aousauag) sseaxs

saanppuads [0
18y pue kepng jepde)
- spaloyd enden
Aajes ayand
UcHENSIUIWLPY [BXRUA0)
juaung
'SIHNLANAI

S3NUATY [RI0 )
SNOAUSYROSIY
s
SRIINGS Joj sebiey)
BANNIAIY

S10Z '0E Y3AWI1d3S 0IANT HVIA FHL HO4

SONNA TYLNIANHINOD HOMYIN-NON

SIONYIvE ANNA NI STONVHI ONV "STRINLIANTAXT 'SINNIATY 40 INIWIALYLES ONINIBNGD

SVXIL ‘NOLNIS 40 ALID



